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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Webster Memorial is a three-story, flat-roofed brick building, five bays wide,
with a central porticoed entrance. Located opposite one of the principal entrances
to Hartford's Bushnell Park, the building is small in comparison to it¢ neighbors.
The surrounding buildings are nearly all large, 20th-century office anc commercial
structures, though the Lewis Street National Register District is arourd the corner
just out of sight. For over 50 years, the Webster Memorial has been tte headquarters
of the Family Services Society of Hartford. The building's brick walls, laid in
common bond with Flemish variation, rest on fieldstone underpinnings wrich are
concealed above grade with brownstone facing. Brownstone also forms tte simple
lintels and sills of the rectangular window openings, now fitted with ¢ix-over-six
double-hung sash.

Built as a three-family residence around 1870, the building originally was ltalianate
in style, with a bracketed cornice, overhanging eaves, and a different entrance
porticc.! It was extensively remodeled in 1924 for the Charity Orgarization
Society, and contained offices, Memorial Hall (2 meeting room) and on the upper
floors, rooms for counseling and teaching. As it stands today, the facade or south-
west side is chiefly distinguished for its limestone entrance treatment. Paired
smooth columns with Corinthian capitals support a flat-roofed portico, which in

turn is surmounted by a solid railing with urns at the corners. The window above
the portico is enframed by limestone pilasters and capped by a round broken
pediment. The bracketted eaves have been replaced by a Classical cornice with
dentils and mutules, above which is a plain brick parapet. The cornice extends
around the sourtheast side of the building, but the northwest wall is Elank:
demolition of an abutting structure and the resulting parking lot have left the

wall exposed. To the rear is a one-story ell with high, round-arched windows,
trimmed with limestone keyblocks and fitted with small-pane sash.

The interior was renovated for office space and has dropped ceilings, carpéted
floors, and more than one generation of re-partitioning. Remaining historic
material, however, includes two marblemantals with curved shelves, round-arched
openings and carved keyblocks near the southeast corner on the first two floors;
a similar mantel believed concealed beneath the wall material near the southwest
corner of the first floor; and two wooden mantels with Gothic arch openings on
the second floor. 1In an ell to the rear added in 1924, is Memorial Hall, now
partitioned into several offices but originally a large open room in a finely
detailed Georgian Revival style. |t has a frieze of alternating triglyshs and
patera, large round-arched windows with corresponding mirrors on the northwest
wall, and a backdrop cn the northeast wall consisting of a dentillated >roken
pediment supported on lcnic pilasters, repeating the motif of the windov above
the entrance.

IThe building does not appear inthe Assessor's streetbook of 1865, but it is listed
in 1871. Lewis Rowell's will of 1872 refers to the '‘new brick building on Trumbull
Street,' one of about a dozen houses owned by Rowell. In 1880, a tobac:onist, a
confectioner, and a toolmaker lived there with their families. 1In 1888, a picture
showing the building before the 1924 renovation suggests that the tcp floor was
boarded up and not rented (State Library, Picture Collection, Blizzard >f 1888).
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Surveys (continued):

Hartford Architecture Conservancy Survey of Hartford
Local - 1975-78
Hartford Architecture Conservancy
Records deposited with:
Stowe-Day Foundation
Hartford, Connecticut

The building is included in one of the survey's published volumes:

Hartford Architecture, Volume One Downtown

Hartford Architecture Conservancy, 1979.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Webster Memorial Building is important because it served as the first permanent home
of Hartford's Charity Organization Society, the major private relief organization of the
early 20th century (Criteria A). The building has its roots in the 19th-century devel-
opement of the Lewis Street area, but it was remodeled in 1924 for the Society by Allen
A and Collens,or of the leading Boston firms. In its location, material and scale,
the building preserves some of its character from its first use as a residence; at the
same time, its Georgian Revival renovation is itself significant, for as the work of
nationally-known architects, it provides a fine example of early 20th-century taste
(Criteria C). Finally, the importance of the building is heightened by its highly
visible location opposite an entrance to Bushnell Park.

The formation of Charity Organization Societies was one of the key developments of the
Progressive Period. Reformers in the last years of the 19th century were distressed

by social unrest arising from new waves of immigration, periodic depression and
unemployment, urban congestion, and increasingly militant labor protest. At the

same time, demands on public and private welfare agencies were rising. Charity
Nrganization Societies were seen as a solution to both problems, and nearly every city
in the country had one. The idea was to streamline private giving by combining charities
into one organization, thereby eliminating dupiication. Secondly, applicants for aid
were rigorously investigated to discover the character flaws which were thought to have
led to destitution. The Charity Organization Societies were a transition between the
19th-century view of poverty as moral failure and professional social work. At least
in its early stages, the movement combined the idea of individual failure with modern
case work methods. The Societies epitomized Progressive values of efficiency and
reliance on social science solutions to problems, while at the same time retaining

the moralistic outlook which pervaded the period.

Hartford's Charity Organization Society was one of the earliest, founded in 1890. On
its 20th anniversary, the Society took pride in the fact that it had steadily reduced
private charity outlays from $33,000 in 1890 to a little over $3,000 in 1910. By
thoroughly investigating and counseling its clients, is felt it had largely eliminated
the "imposition, indolence and debauchery connected with the pauperism of that time

(the 1890s)." In these years the Society rented office space and moved its headquarters
frequently, but a bequest from insurance executive John C. Webster allowed the Society
to move into a permanent home in 1925. Eventually, the judgmental tone was softened,
and following the Depression, when like other private charities they were overwhe Imed
with requests for aid, they changed their name to Family Service Society. Early
programs operating in the building included casework for public assistance recipients
and the Friendly Visiting program, where volunteers visited elderly shut-ins. By

the 1940s, a Homemakers Service was in place for clients unable to care for their homes,

and family counseling had begun.
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Meals on Wheels was the most recent program addition. The organization's significance
during its period in the Webster Memorial lies in its expression of the national trend
in private social work away from individual charity and toward counseling and self-
help efforts.

The house the Society purchased had been built about 1870 by Lewis Rowell, a wealthy
contractor who lived on an adjacent lot fronting on Lewis Street. |t was one of
several houses Rowell built in the area and was rented out to three middle class
families. Although extensively remodelled, the Webster Memorial has not entirely
lost its character as a residential structure. In addition to its historical
association with Rowell and the Lewis Street area, the house retains its small
proportions, brick material, and interior mantels which distinguish it from its
office-building neighbors and recall the earlier nature of the area as a residential
neighborhood. Indeed, in the flood of commercial and governmental buildings of the
20th century, the Webster Memorial is the last ‘19th-century residence left on the
downtown edge of Bushnell Park.

The architects of the 1924 remodeling were Allen and Collens, a firm best known in
Hartford for their buildings at the Hartford Theological Seminary. The senior
partner, Francis R. Allen, was trained in the years 1877-79 at 1'Ecole des Beaux-
arts, and in 1904 joined in partnership with Charles Collens. Working in Gothic
and Classical styles, the firm had an outstanding reputation for their church and
college buildings, notably Union Theological Seminary in New York, the Church of
Christ Scientist in Concord, N.H., and several buildings at Columbia, Williams,
and Vassar colleges. In the Webster Memorial Building, they gave to a rather
ordinary brick house a sense of importance and seriousness fitting for the head-
quarters of Hartford's major charity. The academic, almost heavy, Classical
detailing of the new entrance had connotations of elegance and stateliness.

The repetition of the broken pediment motif gives a unity to the renovation work,
since it connects the reworking of the facade to the finely-detailed Memorial
Hall in the interior.

The restrained neo-Georgian design stands solidly in the mainstream of Hartford's
commercial architecture of the 1920s, represented most monumentally by the Hartford
Connecticut Trust of 1921 (Morris and 0'Connor), a Travelers office of 1927-28
(Voorhees Gmelin and Walker) and the Aetna office of 1929-31 (James Gamble Rogers),
all of which refer to Bullfinch's 1796 01d State House. The Webster Memorial,in

its small scale, achieves a surprisingly similar monumentality and represents

one of Hartford's most successful designs in the style. Inadition, the Memorial
Hall ranks with the interiors of Davis and Brooks' 1914 Municipal Building as
neo-Classical ensembles.
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The broken pediment, the red brick exterior, and the round-arched, small-paned
windows in the ell are the key features which make the Memorial Georgian Revival.
Like the Second Renaissance Revival and the Neo-Classical, other 20th-century
styles with which it shares strong Classical detailing, the neo- Georagian style
was appropriate for public and private buildings where discipline, historical
precedence and a feeling of monumentality were the goals ofarchitecture.



